
 

 
Agenda No. 2012–18 September 24, 2012 Page 1 of 2 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2012–18 

REGULAR MEETING September 24,2012 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
 
I 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for Public 

Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five (5) minutes.  Any person wishing to speak needs to 
complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards of decorum and courtesy 
should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should be directed to the City Council as 
a body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff.  In 
consideration of others, kindly silence all cell phone, electronic and messaging devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk (*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member so 
requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General Agenda). 

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 
7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 1 of 14



 

 
Agenda No. 2012–18 September 24, 2012 Page 2 of 2 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a) Ordinance No. 5892 – An Ordinance Updating Fairbanks General Code 
Sections 2-685 and 2-686 Language Concerning Qualified Financial 
Institutions and Safekeeping and Collateralization of Deposit-Type 
Securities.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND 
PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
b) Ordinance No. 5893 – An Ordinance Repealing Fairbanks General Code 

Sections 2-731 through 2-736 Regarding the J.P. Jones Community 
Development Investment Fund.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  SECOND 
READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
c) Ordinance No. 5894 – An Ordinance Authorizing the Extraterritorial 

Extension of Fire Suppression Services by Contract to Property South of 
Van Horn Road and East of Easy Street.  Introduced by Mayor Cleworth.  
SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Ordinance No. 5896 – An Ordinance to Amend FGC Section 58-34 
Regarding Local Improvement Districts.  Introduced by Council Member 
Stiver.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT) 
 

Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

*a) Local Improvement District Meeting Minutes of August 17, 2012. 
 

*b) Local Improvement District Meeting Minutes of September 7, 2012. 
 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 2 of 14



Introduced by: Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
  Introduced: September 10, 2012 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5892 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
SECTIONS 2-685 AND 2-686 REGARDING SELECTION OF A 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTION AND TERMS REGARDING 
COLLATERALIZATION OF SECURITIES 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Finance Department staff has recommended amendments 
to City Code sections regarding selection of financial institutions and collateralization of 
deposit-type securities; and 

 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has reviewed these proposed changes, 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS as follows[new text in bold/underline font; deleted text in strikeout 
font]: 
 
Section 1. Sections 2-685 are 2-686 are amended as follows 

 
Sec. 2-685. - Qualified institutions. 
 
  The city shall maintain a listing of financial institutions which are approved for 
investment purposes. Banks shall provide their most recent consolidated report 
of condition ("call" report) at the request of the city. At a minimum, the city shall 
conduct an annual evaluation of each bank's credit worthiness to determine 
whether it should be on the qualified institution listing. Securities dealers not 
affiliated with a bank shall be required to be classified as reporting dealers 
affiliated with the New York Federal Reserve Bank, as primary dealers. 
Depositories shall be selected through the government's banking services 
procurement process, which shall include a formal request for proposals issued 
every two or three yearsfor a term of five years with an option of the City 
Council to extend for one additional term of five years. In selecting 
depositories, the creditworthiness of institutions shall be considered, and the 
director of finance shall conduct a comprehensive review of prospective 
depositories' credit characteristics and financial history. 
 
Sec. 2-686. - Safekeeping and collateralization. 
 
  (a) All investment securities purchased by the city shall be held in third-party 
safekeeping by an institution designated as primary agent. The primary agent 
shall issue a safekeeping receipt to the city listing the specific instrument, rate 
maturity and other pertinent information. 
 
  (b) Deposit-type securities (i.e., certificates of deposit, repurchase agree-
ments) shall be collateralized through the deposit of collateral in the amount of 
103102 percent of the invested amount for any amount exceeding FDIC or 
FSLIC coverage. Other investments shall be collateralized by the actual 
security held in safekeeping by the primary agent. 

AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 3 of 14



Ordinance No. 5892 
Page 2 

 
 
Section 2. This ordinance is effective on the ___ day of September 2012. 
 
 

 __________________________ 
 Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 

 
AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ _________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 

AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 4 of 14



Introduced by: Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
  Introduced: September 10, 2012 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 5893 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
SECTIONS 2-731 THROUGH 2-736 REGARDING THE J.P. JONES 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CENTER INVESTMENT FUND 
 

WHEREAS, the City has recently transferred ownership of the J.P. Jones 

Community Development Center to a non-profit organization along with the funds 

remaining in the J.P. Jones Community Development Center Investment Fund; and 

 WHEREAS, in light of the transfer of the building and funds, there is no longer a 

need to provide for management of the J.P. Jones Community Development Center 

Investment Fund, 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS as follows:  

Section 1.  Fairbanks General Code Sections 2-731 through 2-736 are 
repealed. 
 
Section  2.  This Ordinance is effective  September ___, 2012. 
 

 
  
 __________________________ 
 Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 

 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ _________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 

AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 5 of 14



Introduced by: Mayor Jerry Cleworth 
  Introduced: September 10, 2012 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 5894 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXTRATERRITORIAL EXTENSION 

OF FIRE SUPPRESSION SERVICES BY CONTRACT TO PROPERTY 
SOUTH OF VAN HORN ROAD AND EAST OF EASY STREET 

 

 WHEREAS, Resolution 4507 authorized the Mayor to enter into agreements to 

provide extraterritorial fire suppression services to contiguous unprotected properties at 

a rate equivalent to that of other service area providers who could offer the same 

services, subject to FGC Section 2-656, which requires the consent of the City Council 

by ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, since the approval of Resolution 4507, a number of property owners 

with property south of Van Horn Road and east of Easy Street have requested 

contractual fire service at a mill levy equal to the University Fire Service Area, 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF FAIRBANKS as follows 

Section 1. The Mayor is authorized to enter into current and future 
agreements to provide fire protection service to properties outside the City limits 
south of Van Horn Road and east of Easy Street that are not located inside a 
fire service area of the Fairbanks North Star Borough inside Sections 22, 23 & 
26, Township 1 South, Range 1 West, Fairbanks Meridian. 
 
Section 2. This authority is effective until repealed by future Ordinance. 

  
  
 __________________________ 
 Jerry Cleworth, Mayor 

 
AYES:   
NAYS:   
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ _________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 6 of 14



Sponsored by: Council Member Stiver   
Introduced: September 24, 2012  

 

 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 5896 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FGC SECTION 58-34 REGARDING  
LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS 

 
WHEREAS, in 2002, the City amended Article II of Chapter 58 to provide for local 

improvement districts for services; and  
 
WHEREAS, under the current provisions of FGC Sec. 58-34(a) if a Local Improvement District 

for services (LID) is created, the City may either provide the services or contract for the services 
provided; and 

 
WHEREAS, more efficient management of the LID and increased oversight by the property 

owners within the district might be achieved by transferring the responsibility for management of the 
LID to a qualified non-government organization,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of the City of Fairbanks, 

 
Section 1. FGC Section 58-34(a) is amended by adding a new subsection (f) as follows:   

 
Sec. 58-34(a) Local Improvement Districts for Services. 
 

*  *  *  *  *  
 
  (f) The City may enter into an agreement with a qualified organization wherein the City 
would transfer responsibility for operation of a limited improvement district for services 
to that organization, along with the funds collected by the assessment imposed for the 
district.   
 

Section 2.  The effective date of this ordinance shall be the ___ day of _______________ 2012. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Jerry Cleworth, City Mayor 

 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ADOPTED: 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________ 
Janey Hovenden, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 7 of 14



AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 8 of 14



AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 9 of 14



AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 10 of 14



AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 11 of 14



AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 12 of 14



AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 13 of 14



AGENDA PACKET - September 24, 2012 Page 14 of 14


	AGENDA - September 24, 2012
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5892
	Ordinance No. 5893
	Ordinance No. 5894

	NEW BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 5896

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	LID Ad Hoc Committee - 08/17/2012 
	LID Ad Hoc Committee - 09/07/2012 




